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Averill Side Farm (1854)

From 2012 Current owners
1963 Roy (1939-2011) and Sheila (nee Carter) Wood, Stuart, Graham (1968-2012), Malcolm and Sandra E5 H8
1961 bought from Crewe & Harper Estate
1944 Reuben Carter (1907-1989) and Elizabeth Carter (1904-1985) 47
From at least Thomas (1795- 1864) and Mary Hand (1795-1862), Mary (1828-1829 ) Ann (1824-1835) Thomas (1830-1852), William (1838-1852), 177
1829 - 1835 178
Averlside (was this on same site as Averill Side?)
| James (1778-1830 ) and Jane Lomas (1790-1860) (died at Titterton Gate), Benjamin (1821-1866) (died at Beresford Lane) 158
Averil Syd
1642 Son of Widow Kirkham buried at Alstonefield
Bagshaw Cottage Possibly the oldest property in Elkstones. It originally had a thatched roof
From 2003 Current owners
Ada Wood (1903-2003), lvan G13
Booths (moved to Furlong Farm )
Bagshaw Farm ? (is this now Bagshaw Cottage)
James (1872- 1936) and Amy (1886-1917) Simpson, 26
George (1911-1946) 25
James moved to Winkhill House, Winkhill
1892 PR John Riley
George(1849-1919) and Jane (1849-1923) Simpson, 157
John (1874-1894), Jesse (1891-1892) 159




Bank House

From 1977 Current Owners
1967-1977 Russell and Maureen Clowes, Clare, Becky and Nick ( now runs The Red Lion in Thorncliffe)
1957-1967 Tom and Alice Cooper
1957 Ken Wood bought and sold on
1940-1957 Mrs Somerville, nee Smith, and sisters inherited it and rented it out
1890-1940 Mary Ann Smith, nee Ball, by inheritance
(Bank Farm)Tenants George (1861-1936) and Ann Grindey (1861-1941) 15
1930*Redvers Cooper (tenant)
1883-1890 Martha Ball by inheritance
1877-1883 James Ball
1876-1877 John and Henry Stack, London solicitors
Complex inheritance, dates unclear
Thomas and Thomasina Mountford of Ashbourne, absentee landlords
Edensor family of Ashbourne, absentee landlords
1850 Tithe Joseph Salt tenant
1817 John(1766-1831) and Mary (1766-1831) Titterton 191
Breach Farm
From 2005 Current Owners
Eric (1921-2005)and Ruth Swindells, D7
The Breech (was this Breach Farm?)
1908 PR John Alcock
1908-9 LTA Owner : JK Taylor, Occupier: Samuel Alcock
1892 PR Sam Riley
1843 PR Joseph Edge (1789-18497?) 188
1830 LTA

Brindley Croft
Built in 1880 by Jos

hua Salt. 2 bedroom farmhouse with attached barn and 20 acres

From 2004 Current Owners

£360,000

1994 Alan and Vivienne Johnson

£130,000 1997 Stable block built by AR (Bob) Prince
1987 Mr SG Porter and Miss DL Clarke

Married in 1989




1982 Mr and Mrs BA Lovering
£39,500 Applied to abstract water from underground for agricultural purposes
1980 Mrs D Lowe
£20,000
1975 Mrs ME Connolly and Mrs D Lowe
£13,000
5 acres
1973 MJ and PJ Morey
£13,000
1964 B and AM Gould (d1973)
£1850
1960 Franziscek (Frank) and Peggy Kunz, Christopher, David, Paul, Julie and Adrian (born after they left Brindley Croft)
£1750
1951 Harold Ward
£1760
Joseph (1844-1908) Grindey 121
Frank Stubbs
1908-9 LTA Owner: Joseph Hand, Occupier: Grindey
1896 Joseph Hand
Cave Farm Original house no longer there
From 1999 Current Owners
Andy and Dot Floyd
1950 Arthur and Gwynne Floyd, Richard and Andrew
Hampsons
1908 LTA Owner: Thomas Cook, Occupier: Mrs Hanson
1903 PC Mr Grindy
1892 PR George Berisford
1830 LTA Owner Thomas and John Cook, Occupier John Salt
1827 Cook family. Built the “new” house
Chapel House (originally Chapel House, changed to Chapel Cottage, back to Chapel House 2015)
From 1989 Current Owners H4
1986 Ruth and Alan Martin
1985 Christopher Base
1973 Reverend John and Mrs Brenda Starkey
1968 Ken and Eileen Slack (now Lovatt) and Pearl Clowes
1947 Frank and Mary Deaville




1941 Mary Somerville of Buxton ("Derby widow") who rented it out to Hannah and Redvers Cooper who left to take on the Cock Inn
1932 James Burnett Smith of Stanshope : George Deaville was tenant

Pre 1932 Owned by Sarah Ann Smith of Greenhouse Farm, Grindon

1867-1906 Esther Sutton

Harriet Deaville (shopkeeper)*

Count House Farm

Now derelict

around 1950

Jack Eany and Mum

1908-9 LTA

Owner:George Warren, Occupier: Thomas Wilson

Ann 1848-1929 and Joseph1851-1931 Robinson 1
Cowhay Head, Stoneyfold Lane
Current Owners
Cliff and Mary Carter, Keith, Diane, Jane
1951 * J Gould
Joseph Gould (1838-1905) married 1) Mary Gould (1838-1893) 2)Ellen Smith Gould (1859-1932), William (1885-1918) son of Ellen 130
Crowtrees
From 2006 Current Owners
John (1916-2006) and Jane (1915-1999) Lomas, John and David G6
Solomon (1881-1964) and Jane Ann(1887-1915) Lomas, Grace d 1908 age 2 weeks and John Matthew (1907-1908) 149
1911 (census) Ellen Gould (widow) George Oliver (nephew)
William (1833-1904) and Mary Ann (1832-1892) Gould, Mary Ann (1871-1892) and William (1869-1872) 131,132
Ralph and Mary Ann (1841-1870) Brassington, Walter (1863-1872) 84
Feltysitch
Current Owners
Mellor family
Furlong Farm
Current Owners
Eveline Booth, Carl
Harry Booth, Eveline, Ernest (1928-2007) H5
1908 PR Albert Brindly
1892 PR George Deaville
Joshua (1837-1900) and Esther (1837-1877) Woolley, Esther d July 1877 (6 months) 175
Joshua died at Rakes, Hartington
Greenside




Current Owners

Charlie (1923-1997) and Marjorie (1923-2002) Wentworth, Margaret and Frank G8
Frank Salt
Bought from Fred and Ginny Salt
Crewe and Harper
Estates 1951
1908 PR Walter (1876-1934) and Bessie (1874-1948) Salt, Charlotte (1884-1930) (sister of Walter?) 64
1919 PC
Joseph (1847-1900) and Eliza (1852-1900) Salt, William (1881-1894) 174

Grove House and Stable (Susan) Cottage

Fomr 2012

Current Owners

Cliff (d2012) and Veronica Lawrenson, Fiona and Alistair

Mr Gibson

Harry and Mrs Grindon, Mary, Harry, Christine, Geoffrey

Joseph (1838-1911) and Mary Ann (d1908) Wood

1901 (census)

Thomas b1867and Mary (Polly) (nee Critchlow) (1865-1918) Oliver, George J (b1891), John (Jack) b1894, Anne b1891

Heath House Farm

Built about 1890

From 1980 Current Owners
1968 Empty for 12 years
Tom Bould
1930-1960 William (1899-1964) and Kathleen(1900-1974) Chamberlain, Olga b1927, Mary (1928-2004) and Muriel b1928 — married Roy Ashcroft of
Warslow, Joe b 1930
1890s Salts: not related to the local Salts
Herbage
Current Owners
Malcom and Pat Hawksworth, Ben, Cathryn and Jessica
1961 Reuben Carter (was this the same Reuben Carter who lived at Averilside? Was Herbage bought from Crewe and Harper in 19617?)
1776 CW John Wain
Highfields
From 2007 Current Owners
1983 Mr & Mrs Chapman




1980 The Dengels
1979 Thomas Bloor & family
1946-1979 Len(1919-1998) and Blanche d2004 Ward, Heather (married Charlie Plant and lived at Hob Hay Farm), Hazel

Owned 1971 -1979

Tenant 1946 — 1971 (Owner William Francis Challinor)

Len born at Highfields 1919 moved to the Mermaid but returned to live with his grandparents
the Swindells.

Unclear as to who owners were but references to

1940’s Boydons and Mr F James
1935 Harold Ward (Lens dad ?) and Robert Bestwick
1930’s Elizabeth Keates
1900’s William Johnsons Tennant from pre 1919-1946 Leonard (1862-1946) and Margaretta (1964-1937) Swindells, Mary (1899-1920) (Len Ward'’s
Mother), Gret (1894- 1987) Mary’s sister Ellen (who moved to Canada and had a family there) Ellen’s daughter Daisy (1913-
1958)
1895 Sarah Oliver
1892 Thomas Shaw
1890 James Meakin Deaville
1845 George Keates
1837 William Deaville
1668 lease honourable Walter Aston- John Vicars and John Wardle
1665 lease honourable Walter Aston — John Adderley these both have references to cottage and land.
Hill Farm
Current Owners
Jack and Doris Wentworth and Andrew
Jack Wentworth’s parents
Chatsworth Estate
1830 LTA Sampson and Thomas Salt
Hill House 1696
From 2013 Current Owners
2007-2013 Richard and Shona Hughes
2002-2007 John and Sheila (d2014) Walker, Henri H9
1992-2002 Steve and Lynne Gregory, Nina, Laura




1985-1992 Chris and Helen (d1996) Barnsley
1983-1985 Michael Graham and Deborah Myatt
Dec 1981 John Tunnicliffe (see Underhill)

Oct 1981-Dec
1981

Nigel and Susan Davis

1954-1981 Alan (1914-2001) and Edna (1916-2005) Ash, Jean and Wendy 75, G5
1943-1954 Owned by Elvezio Bernasconi ( Director at Joshua Wardle, Leekbrook, also owned Meadows Farm), farmed by William (Bill) and Louisa (Louie)
Pointon, Ann, Ken and Joan
Challinor
1928 PC Samuel Jacob Swindell
1908-09 LTA Owner: Beaumont,
1908 PR Tenants :Tom, Sam Swindell
1892 PR Tom Leech
Izaac Bradshaw
1830 LTA Owner: Sampson Gould, Tenant: John Bagshaw

Hillside Cottage Converted from barn to agricultural cottage around 1980 by Nancy Wood

From 2015

Current tennants

Occupied by Hazel Sowerbutts and Roger Miller

Hillside Farm

From 2014 Current Owners

Lee Cooper

Frank Kirkham (1906-1999) and sister Annie (1904-1982)
1908-9 LTA Owner: Mrs Goldstraw, Occupier: Thomas Salt
PR 1908 Tom Salt, daughter Elsie Salt 1905-1907

1901 Census

William Strachan and daughter Alice

Hob Hay Cottage

Current Owners

Charles and Jean Holt

Kevin and Victoria Gordon

Dr Smith

Amy Bowden (Village Shop)




1917 (Chapel
Caretaker)

Thomas Bould

Thomas (1826-1908) and Hannah (1864-1906) Hulme, Mary Hannah (1893-1935), Mary Elizabeth (May) 1900-1965

1850 Tithe

John Salt

1830 LTA (or
could be Hob Hay
Farm)

Owner: John Salt, Occupier: John (1767-1831) and Mary (1766-1831)

Hob Hay Farm

Current Owners

Charlie and Liz Plant, Isabel, Harvey and Callum

Charlie and Heather Plant, Charlie Jnr, Netta

1934-1979

Dennis (1910-1979) and Sarah (Nellie) (1910-1995) Bowden, Sylvia (1938-1996)

Thomas (1889-1960) and Amy (1888-1970) Bowden

1908 LTA (or
could be Hob Hay
Cottage)

Owner: Albert Taylor, Occupier: William Grindey

Hole Farm

Current Owners

Phil and Maureen Biddulph

Keith Humphries

Geoff and Iris Salt

Charlie and Marjorie Wentworth (moved to Greenside)

1908 PR, 1892 PR

Joe Salt

John (1769-1833) (not at Hole farm when he died) and Sarah (1775-1833) Kidd, Mary (1802-1803), William (1805-1827), Martha (1805-1826),
Ann (1809-1825), Sampson (1814-1837), Thomas (1818-1834),

38

Little Brownlow

Hilda Deaville (d 2015)

George and Hilda Deaville

Frank and Anna?Barker

Lumbs Farm new house built in 1993 on the site of the Staffordshire Gliding Club which moved away to Seighford in 1992. The original Lumbs Farm used to be up by roadside above

The Mermaid but there is no sign of it now.

Manor View Farm built around 2000

| Current Owners

Manor Farm (Original Farmhouse)

| Current Owners




John and Jean Gilman, Anthony, Brenda

PC 1937 Zadok (1869-1949) and Mary (1872-1942) Cooper, Thomas (1904-1987) 50
Manor House
Current Owners
Roy and Shirley Cooper
Meadows Farm
Current Owners
Gordon and Celia Critchlow, Stephen and Graham and Melanie
Owned by Elvezio Bernasconi ( Director at Joshua Wardle, Leekbrook, also owned Hill House) Farmed by Sampson and Edith Bould (lived there
38 years)
1928 Cook family
Mary Hudson (1865-1907)
John Brindley (1782-1862)
Mount Pleasant Farm Farmhouse built 1869, northern buildings probably 1700s.
From 1973 Current Owners
Nancy Deaville pre War, later married Ken Wood.
Deavilles
Thomas (1852-1932) and Mary Ann (1873-1902) Bould , Elizabeth, Jesse, Thomas, William, John, Elsie, George, Alice, Susanna (no dates for
children)
1869 Jand E Hope
New York Farm
From 2015 Current Owners
1994 Tyra Till
Rob and Rosemary Ford and 4 children
John 1887-1973 and Hannah (1881-1969) Buxton
1908-9 LTA Owner and Occupier : Hannah Baimbridge
1843 PR John Lomas
Olde Inn Cottage ( formerly The Cock Inn) The pub closed in 1976 and became residential
From 1985 Current Owners
1946-1985 Redvers (1901-1977) and Hannah (1902-1985) Cooper 49
1946 Ralph (1885-1934) and Alice (1885-1934) Bagnall 53
1911 Mary Salt
1906 Sarah Bradbury
1899 Joseph(1874-1905) and Mary Riley, Joseph Reginald (1904-1910) Percy (d1899 aged 6 weeks)
1892 Solomon Lomas
1874 George Salt Deaville and Esther




1865 John and Alice Lomas

1851 Thomas Woolley

1841 Joseph Frost

0Old Schoolhouse School closed in 1970. Bought by Bill Tunnicliffe. Modified for residential use, extended first floor to the north

Current Owners

1908-9 LTA Owner : Thomas Bould
Overdale (built around 1970)
From 1970 | Current Owners

Pleasant View (built around 1970)

Current Owners

Ron and Sylvia Weston

Ken and Nancy Wood, Mrs Irene Hodgkinson, Charlie Bou;d

Rose View, used to be Rose Cottage, previously Sycamore Farm

From 2005 Current Owners
1981 Alan (1914-2001) and Edna (1916-2005) Ash (formerly of Hill House) 75, G5
Hugh and Rosemary Barker
Miss Annie Deaville (schoolteacher)
Mrs Salmon, Alice Deaville (schoolteachers)
George Salt and Ester Salt Deaville (1846-1923), William (1868-1918) 8,9
Royledge
From 2007 Current Owners
Tom (1915-2005) and Hilda (1928-1986) Buxton, Terry, Barbara and Janet A3,3
Empty in early 1940s
Late 1920s Tom and ? (died in childbirth ) Keeling, Olive, Tom, Dick, Fred
Joseph (1811-1889) and Alice (1815-1870) Salt, Mary (1) (d1848 age 9 months) George (1845-1852), Mary (2) 1857-1886 166,167
George (1798- 1861) and Ester (1802-1852) Salt, 170
George (1739-1815) and Ellen (1762-1846) Salt, Sarah d1797 (9 months) 167
1737 CW George Lomas
Ryecroft
Current Owners H6
John and Margaret Alcock, children John (1914), Reuben (1919), and Amy born at Ryecroft (moved to Townhead)
Thomas (1890-1942) and Rachel (1902-1976) Whieldon 36
John /Jack?(1926-1997) Alfred (1928-2002) Whieldon 77

Sam, Ken, Doris, Rachel, Clara, Betty, Kathy, Christopher

10




1908 PR James (1839-1899) and Mary (1840-1917) Salt 136, 54
1830 LTA John (1796-1886) and Betty (1800-1872) Salt, John junior1827-1892, Eliza 1834-1906 133134
cw James (1769-1852) 34
Stonebank (used to be Rottenstone Bank)
Current Owners
Vincent Lambert
Wards (moved to Brindley Croft in 1951)
1908-9 LTA Owner: George Cotton, Occupier: Jane Gould
PR 1892 Tom Hill
Joseph d 188? Age 75 and Mary Grindey 165
William (1767-1840's) and Mary Kidd (Mary was still there in 1871)
Stoneyfold
From 1983 Current Owners
Ralph and Eileen Derbyshire, lan and Julie
George and Mum of Jimmy Gibson (moved to Grove House)
1907 PC John Riley
1908 PR
Uriah and Sarah Edge, Son William (1805-1863) wife Mary (1831-1879), daughter Alice of Lane End, Lower Elkstone (1803-1878) 189, 190
William (1732-1794) and Mary (1730-1823) Grindon, William junior (1768-1806) 155,156
Townhead Built 1854
Current Owners
Johnnie (1914-2006) and Annie (d2015) Alcock, Desmond and Margaret
John (1885-1946) and Margaret (1883-1945) Alcock 5
in residence 1951 | Eli (1902-1973) and Violet Lomas, Bob 82
PR1908 William Salt
Thomas Bestwick 1858-1901 18

PR 1843 William Brittlebank

Townway

from 2014 Current Owners
David and Christine Evans, Sarah and Ben
Johnnie and Annie Alcock, Des and Margaret

Treetops

From 2010 Current Owners

1999 Peter and Julie Grindey and family

Charlie and Eileen Lovatt
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Charlie and Eileen Critchlow

1973

Ken and Eileen Slack, Christopher, Jenny, and Helen

Tom and Alice Cooper

Underhill (previous

ly known as Under-The-Hill Farm (it appears thus now on some maps) and Great Clowes Farm, Great Close Farm and Great Close Head.

From 2011 Current Owners
1999-2011 Peter and Joanne Heath
1949 John William (Bill) (died 18th June 1991) and Jane Tunnicliffe (1927- 2003), Eric, Joan and Brian 74
Samuel Jacob (was born in Underhill farm in 1905) and Frances Alcock, Eric, Joyce and Victor
1884 Samuel (1857-1937) and Sarah (1859-1934) Alcock
1876- 1892 Owned by Joseph Salt
1841 Census John (1788-1875) and Margaret (1787-1865) Deaville, Jane (1814-1840), Mary (1823-1859), John (1819-1875), Sarah (wife of Enoch Hill) 103 (says Great Close
PR 1843 (1817-1871) Head on memorial

inscription)
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